
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., October 11, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, October 4, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, October 9, 2022  

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 27, 2022 

                           

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                                                                     

                                                                                 

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-001 ………………………………………………………….        1 - 2 

Resolution approving Above-Step Appointment for Temporary  

Accountant II positions 

    

2. Intent of Award ……………………………………………………………………………        3 - 6 

IFB#GHURA-06-16-2022-CDBG; Construction of MTM Community 

Recreational Facility 

 

V.    OLD BUSINESS 

1. Change Order ……………………………………………………………………………………       7 - 55 

Inarajan Basketball Court 

 

  VI.   CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. HOME Investment Partnerships Grant Program 
 

         2.  Emergency Solutions Grant Program 
 

 

  VII.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 
 

 



 

 

                                                                                                                                      
VIII.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1 .   Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, October 25, 2022 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

    

 

    IX.   ADJOURNMENT  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



3
0

T
u
e
s
d
a
y,

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

 4
, 
2
0

2
2
 

T
h

e
 P

a
c

if
ic

 D
a

il
y

 N
e

w
s

g
u

a
m

p
d

n
.c

o
m

in the 450 class and Varize 
finished 10th in the 250 
class. Lipanovich came in 
22nd in the 450 cc KTM, 
which was able to have 
Team Guam place 14th in 
the qualifiers and able to 
compete the main event 
the next day, according to 
the release.

Main event

The final competition 
filled three motos with 
mud due to rain. Bloss and 
Varize returned to compete 
where Bloss found himself 
at sixth place in three laps. 
However, several crash-
es and a blown engine 
knocked him down to 16th 
place, according to the re-
lease. Bloss ended up plac-
ing 34th in moto 1.

Varize fell to a disadvan-
tage with competing with 
bikes meant for the 450 
class on a bike meant for 
the 250 class. Varize fin-
ished at 29th place, accord-

ing to the release.
Moto 2 had Lipanovich 

and Varize compete in the 
Open class. Lipanovich 
started off strong. He then 
suffered a smoked engine 
which he attended to. Li-
panovich ended up at 32nd 
place. Varize improved by 
placing 20th, according to 
the release.

Moto 3, also known as 
the final moto, had Bloss 
and Lipanovich compete in 
the Open and MXGP class-
es. Bloss pushed through 
the pouring rain with a 
missing engine, according 
to the release. He was able 
to have his bike attended to, 

but found they had to for-
feit the race to finish 35th.

Lipanovich stayed in the 
race with a backup bike. He 
made the switch days prior, 
according to the release. 
He pushed through while 
staying cautious. Though 
this slowed him down, Li-
panovich finished the race 
in 32nd place and saved his 
bike. Team Guam overall 
placed 17th place, accord-
ing to the release.

Despite the placements, 
Team Guam was happy to 
be included in the main 
event, according to the re-
lease.

IN THE  SUPERIOR
COURT OF GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF
THE ESTATE OF

EDUARDO GUNGON DAVID JR. 
Deceased.

PROBATE CASE 
NO.PR0151-19 

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
by ROWENA DAVID SUNGA, 
Administratrix of the Estate 
of EDUARDO GUNGON DAVID 
JR., deceased, through the 
undersigned counsel, to the 
creditors of, and all persons 
having claims against, the 
deceased, that within sixty (60) 
calendar days after the first 
publication of this notice, all 
claims shall be filed, with the 
necessary vouchers, to the said 
Administratrix of the Estate at 
the Office of the Clerk of the 
Superior Court of Guam, or 
exhibit them with the necessary 
vouchers to the said ROWENA 
DAVID SUNGA, Administratrix 
at c/o: Mark E. Kondas, Esq., 
BAUMANN, XU and BLACK, 
LLC, at 238 Archbishop Flores 
Street, Suite 903, Hagatna, 
Guam 96910, the same being 
the place for the transaction 
of business of the Estate. For 
further particulars, creditors 
should refer to the specific 
requirements set forth by law.

Dated this 23rd day of 
September, 2022.

BAUMANN, XU and BLACK, LLC
/s/ MARK E. KONDAS

Attorney for Administratrix

BAUMANN, XU and BLACK, LLC
238 ARCHBISHOP FLORES ST., SUITE 903

HAGATNA, GUAM 96910

Tel: (671) 477-9084 

Fax: (671) 477-9087

The Guam Board of Social 
Work Regular Virtual

Board Meeting,

Thursday, October 06, 2022
at 11:00AM.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/8613094
8272?pwd=SGdQOC9iTWpab0RDYk

ppYWZjZ01Xdz09

Meeting ID: 861 3094 8272
Passcode: 914672

To view the names of the applicants 
being considered go to

https://guamsocialwork.org
LIVE Streaming link

http://facebook.com/HPLOGuam

For more information,
please contact the Board office at

735-7404/10 thru 12. Persons 
needing telecommunication device for 

the Hearing/Speech Impaired (TDD) 
may contact 475-8339

This advertisement was paid for by 
DPHSS/Health Professional Licensing 

Office-Local Funds

I

II
III
IV

V
VI
VII

VIII

IX

X

XI

Call to order
A. Confirmation of Public Notice
Determination of Quorum
Adoption of Agenda
Review and Approval
of Minutes
A. August 04, 2022.
HPLO Administrator’s Report
Chairperson’s Report
Committee Reports:
A. Finance & Budget
B. Statutes, Rules and Forms
Old Business:
A. Consideration of Applications 
for Renewal of Licensure
New Business:
A. Consideration of Applications 
for Licensure
B. Consideration of Applications 
for Renewal of Licensure
Announcement(s):
A. Next Meeting: The Guam 
Board of Social Work next 
regularly scheduled board 
meeting, November 03, 2022
at 11:00AM.
Adjournment:

Meeting Agenda:

LAW OFFICE OF CYNTHIA V. ECUBE, ESQ.
A Professional Corporation
207 Martyr Street, Suite 3
Hagatna, Guam 96910
Telephone No.: (671) 472-8889
Telecopier No.: (671) 472-8890
Email address: info@ecubelaw.com

Attorney for Petitioner OLIVER A. BEJERANA

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT 
OF GUAM

HAGÅTÑA, GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF 
THE ESTATE

OF

ROGELIO 0. BEJERANA
Decedent. 

PROBATE CASE NO. PR0161-22

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

  NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the 

undersigned Administrator of the 

Estate of ROGELIO O. BEJERANA, 

Deceased, to the creditors of, and 

all persons having claims against 

the said Estate or against the 

said Decedent, that within two (2) 

months after the first publication 

of this Notice, they either file them 

with the necessary vouchers to 

the LAW OFFICE OF CYNTHIA 
V. ECUBE, ESQ., A Professional 

Corporation, 207 Martyr Street, 

Suite 3, Hagåtña, Guam 96910, 

the same being the place for the 

transaction of the said estate.

DATED: September 27, 2022.

/s/ OLIVER A. BEJERANA, 
Administrator

Estate of Rogelio Bejerana

BROOKS CONCEPCION LAW, P.C.
247 Martyr Street, Ste. 101
Hagatna, Guam 96910
(671) 472-6848
(671) 477-5790

Attorneys for Lisa H. Harris

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT 
OF GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF 
THE ESTATE OF:

LORETTA R. LIZAMA,

Deceased.

PROBATE CASE NO: PRO163-22

NOTICE OF HEARING
ON PETITION FOR LETTERS OF

ADMINISTRATION

IN PERSON HEARING

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
that Petitioner, Georgette Bello 
Concepcion, has filed a petition 
for Letters of Administration 
upon the Estate of Decedent, 
Loretta R. Lizama, reference to 
which Petition is hereby made 
for further particulars.
  A hearing on the Petition for 
Letters of Administration is 
set for October 13, 2022, at 
9:30 A.M., in the courtroom of 
the Superior Court of Guam, 
Hagatna, Guam. 
  All persons interested are 
hereby notified to appear at 
the time and place set for said 
hearing and show cause, if 
any, they have, why the Petition 
should not be granted.

By: /s/ Terrence M. Brooks, Esq.
Attorney for Lisa H. Harris

CABOT
MANTANONA LLP
929 S. Marine Corps Dr., Ste. 200 
Tamuning, Guam 96913
Telephone: (671) 646-2001 
Facsimile: (671) 646-0777

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT 
OF GUAM 

IN THE MATTER 
OF THE ESTATES

OF

ROGELIO IRUGUIN NOCON and
BENJAMIN IRUGUIN NOCON,

Deceased.

PROBATE CASE NO. PR0146-22

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

  NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
by the Administrator of the 
Estates of Rogelio lruguin Nocon 
and Benjamin lruguin Nocon, 
Deceased, to the creditors of, and 
all persons having claims against 
the said Estate or against said 
Deceased, that within two (2) 
months after the first publication 
of this notice, they either file 
their claim(s) with the necessary 
vouchers in the office of the Clerk 
of the Superior Court of Guam, or 
exhibit them with the necessary 
vouchers to Cabot Mantanona, 
LLP, 929 South Marine Corps Dr., 
Ste. 200, Tamuning, Guam 96913, 
the same being the place for the 
transaction of the said Estate.

/s/ CYNTHIA NOCON TULABOT
Administrator

Date: 9/8/2022

THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, October 11, 2022 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.

Topic: GHURA BOC Meeting, Tuesday, Oct., 11, 2022

Time: Oct 11, 2022 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby
Join Zoom Meeting

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83323189581?pwd=WGhhcW1uZk1DeWdXS21VdDgxNXdiUT09

Meeting ID: 833 2318 9581        Passcode: 068894
Watch YouTube Live Stream

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag
AGENDA:
 I.  ROLL CALL
 II.  BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
 III.  APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 27, 2022
 IV.  NEW BUSINESS
   1. Resolution No. FY2023-001; Resolution Approving Above-Step  
    Appointment for Temporary Accountant II Positions.
   2. Intent of Award, IFB#GHURA-06-16-2022-CDBG; Construction of 
    MTM Community Recreational Facility
 V.  OLD BUSINESS
   1. Change Order for the Inarajan Basketball Court
 VI.  CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
   1. HOME Investment Partnerships Grant Program
   2. Emergency Solutions Grant Program
 VII.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
   1. Project Updates
 VIII.  GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
   1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, October 25, 
    2022 @ 12:00 p.m.
 IX.  ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.

For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for 
special accommodations, please contact Chief Planner – Designated 

Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

The scORe

Motocross
Continued from Page 32





GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2022                                                                           Page 1 of 6 
 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., September 27, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the                                       

Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board 

meeting was called to order at 12:00 P.M. Friday, September 27, 2022, at the 

GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He 

indicated that 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing 

a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Dr. John Rivera, Chairman  
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman 
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner (via 
zoom) 
Anisia Delia, Commissioner  
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
Emilia Rice, Commissioner (via zoom) 
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner 
(via zoom) 
 
ABSENT: 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Joseph B. McDonald, Esq. 
 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director  
Fernando Esteves, Deputy Director 
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant 
Frances Danieli, Fiscal Controller 
Sonny Perez, AE Manager 
Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator 
Norma San Nicolas, Section 8 Manager 
Stephen Baza, Section 8 Inspector 
Supervisor 
 
PUBLIC:  
Mrs. Tina Cruz and family 
 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, September 20, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, September 25, 2022  

 ACKNOWLEDGED by the GHURA BOC 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2022                                                                           Page 2 of 6 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 13, 2022 

[107/22] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the minutes of the Sept. 13, 

2022 BOC meeting subject to corrections. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the 

motion. There were no objections by the other board members. Motion passed 

unanimously.                                                                                                                                                                                                          

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2022-016 commending Ms. Tina Marie C. Cruz, Program 

Coordinator I, for her dedication and contributions to the Guam Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority (GHURA) 

[108/22] Chairman Rivera read the following Resolution: 

• Whereas, prior to joining the GHURA team, Ms. Tina Marie C. Cruz had prior 

service with the agency for Human Resources Development (AHRD); and 

• Whereas, on Sept. 9, 2002, Ms. Cruz began her career as a Housing Assistance 

Program Specialist with the Section 8 division; and 

• Whereas, on July 5, 2006, Ms. Cruz was promoted to the Section 8 supervisory 

position as a Contract Control Analyst; and 

• Whereas, Mrs. Cruz subsequently transferred to a Program Coordinator I 

position on April 6, 2009, where she handled the Section 8 Management 

Assessment Program (SEMAP); and  

• Whereas, Mrs. Cruz dedicated over 20 years of service in support of the 

mission and goals of the Authority and  

• Whereas, her efforts toward effectively and efficiently executing her official 

duties and responsibilities had a direct and positive impact ensuring 

compliance with the program requirements for the Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program and that housing assistance benefits for the Authority’s 

clients are accurately and adequately provided; and 

• Whereas, the Board of Commissioners extends its recognition and gratitude to 

Mrs. Cruz commending her on her retirement from the Authority, and 

extending best wishes on her future endeavors; now, therefore, be it 

• Resolved that the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners shall certify and 

the Executive Director attest the adoption hereof Resolution No. FY2022-16 

and that, thereafter, shall be presented to Mrs. Tina Marie Cruz, whereby a 

copy shall be placed in her official personnel file and a copy provided to the 

Governor of Guam. 

Mrs. Tina Cruz thanked her coworkers for the open communication and understanding that 

they shared with her during her time at GHURA.  

 

 



GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2022                                                                           Page 3 of 6 
 

[109/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to approve Resolution No. FY2022-016. 

Commissioner Delia seconded the motion. There were no objections by the other 

board members. Deputy Director Esteves inquired about whether Mrs. Cruz preferred 

the Resolution to reflect “Mrs. Cruz” or “Ms. Cruz” before the resolution is voted upon. 

Mrs. Cruz indicated that she was fine with the way Resolution FY2022-016 was 

written. The motion passed.  

Director Napoli congratulated Mrs. Cruz and wished her well in her retirement.  

 

2. Resolution No. FY2022-017 approving the 2022 Family Self-Sufficiency Action Plan 

[020/022] Director Napoli deferred this presentation to Mrs. Norma San 

Nicolas, Section 8 Administrator. Mrs. San Nicolas stated the following: 

 

• HUD required that FSS revise its Action Plan 

• An approved Action Plan must be submitted to HUD no later than September 

30, 2022.  

• HUD is required to review updated policies reflecting the new regulations and 

approved before new participants may be enrolled 

• FSS is a combined program for Public Housing and Section 8 

• Changes made in calculating escrow 

• Changes made in how escrow monies are to be dispersed 

• Guidelines have been included on when a contract can be modified or extended 

• The 30% rule as an option for graduation has been removed 

• Welfare-free requirement is no longer 12 months prior to graduation, it is at 

graduation 

• Project Based Rental Assistance Program (PBRA) participants may participate 

in the FSS program 

• Interim Disbursement of Escrow is allowed only if participants are making 

progress toward their goals 

Mrs. San Nicolas indicated that the Action Plan is a policy for the implementation of the FSS 

program, which is to reflect the new changes mandated by HUD. 

Chairman Rivera requested that the board be provided with an executive summary of the 

major line-item changes. Mrs. San Nicolas agreed that a summary will be provided.  

Commissioner Corpus inquired about whether there would be an increase in FSS personnel. 

Mrs. San Nicolas indicated that HUD would determine the level of assistance FSS will receive 

based on the number of the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing participants there 

are. Currently, there are 130 participants in the program.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about the number of participants that have graduated 

from the program. Mrs. San Nicolas indicated that since the program’s inception, there have 



GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2022                                                                           Page 4 of 6 
 

been about 93 graduates. Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about the duration of the 

program. Mrs. San Nicolas stated that it can take up to (5) years to complete the program 

adding that most graduates also leave the Section 8 program because they end up purchasing 

a home.  

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about whether the FSS program tracks the progress of those 

who have graduated from the program. Mrs. San Nicolas stated that the program no longer 

tracks the progress of those who have graduated from the program.  Commissioner Corpus 

added that GHURA’s website contains posts of success statements made by past FSS 

graduates.  

Director Napoli stated that the FSS Action Plan has been in existence and that the reason it is 

being proposed to the board is due to revisions and updates that require board approval to 

remain in compliance, per the Final Rule published by HUD in June 2022.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about how much goes to the FSS program. Mrs. San 

Nicolas stated that the program is funded by a grant for salaries of the staff, which is updated 

annually.  

Deputy Director Esteves indicated that the board can assign a resolution that will be 

considered votes on the matter at hand and that the documents in the board packet will 

serve support it.  Mr. Joe McDonald, GHURA’s legal counsel, stated that if the item is on the 

agenda, then it would be fine for the board to vote on.  

[110/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve Resolution No. FY2022-017 

approving the 2022 Family Self-Sufficiency Program Action Plan. Commissioner Delia 

seconded the motion. There were no objections by the other board members. Motion 

passed.  

 

V.    OLD BUSINESS 

1. Change Order- Inarajan Basketball Court 

[111/22] Mr. Sonny Perez, A/E Manager, stated the following: 

• Presentation will be viewed as a discussion item 

• Summary sheet included: 

1. Material Cost increases about 70% difference from 2019 

2. Requests are still under review 

3. A/E has requested that contractor submit the True Costs 

4. 30% difference for labor cost is acceptable 

5. Sub-surface Soil investigation and covered canopy design- for further 

discussion and approval 

6. Overhead Profit (OHP) is still under review 

• As of September 20, 2022- substantial progress has been made 



GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2022                                                                           Page 5 of 6 
 

• Pouring for the basketball court scheduled for November 2022 

• JJ Global is anticipating substantial completion by the end of November 

• Contract completion date sometime in December 

• Form for concrete bleachers has begun 

• Restroom roof facility pour has begun 

• Electrical pole form has been installed 

• Basketball court foundation to begin 

• Paperwork for the change orders will be included at the next board meeting 

• JJ Global has been informed of the deadline to submit documents for review 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about the 92% increase for mobilization. Mr. Perez 

indicated that the request is under review and negotiations. Vice Chairwoman Guzman 

requested that the board be provided with GHURA’s estimate, JJ Global’s bid and what the 

actual award was. Mr. Perez indicated that JJ Global was confident that they would complete 

the project, but due to the pandemic, the building permitting process took a year to complete.  

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired on the progress of the Women’s Treatment Center.  

Mr. Joe McDonald, GHURA’s Legal counsel, advised that the board may discuss standing 

business items. What is important are any items on the agenda that require action by the 

board. Mr. Perez was allowed to discuss the item brought up by Commissioner Ishizaki.  

Mr. Perez stated that the Women’s Treatment Center had run into delays. Inland Builders had 

(2) issues, one is the limited Construction Manager. GHURA had requested that Inland 

Builders either hire another construction manager company or the GHURA A/E staff will 

manage the project moving forward. The second issue is the submittals. GHURA has 

requested that Inland Builders send their submittals to the GHURA A/E Staff to review, 

accept, and approve to continue moving forward. Due to the closure of the CM office, the 

foundation bolts were not approved. The foundation bolts are needed to hold up the metal 

structures and without approval, the concrete pouring was delayed.  

Director Napoli indicated that Inland Builders were informed that they are to submit their 

submittals and have it cleared by October. They were also informed to submit a plan with the 

subcontractors should the H2 workers be delayed for another time. Inland Builders were 

informed that the March deadline will be the final completion date. GHURA staff will be 

making regular site visits to ensure that progress continues towards the final completion 

date.  

Deputy Director Esteves added that another important point is funding. He stated that not 

only are they obligated to complete the project by the deadline, but the invoicing and 

drawdowns need to happen on schedule, as well to remain compliant with HUD. GHURA will 

be holding the contractors accountable to those timelines.  

There were no further discussions. 



GHURA BOC Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2022                                                                           Page 6 of 6 
 

 

 

 

VI.    EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

[112/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• GHURA is winding down its Fiscal Year 2022 
• Public Housing sites continue with consumables inventory; reports due in October 
• Mrs. Norma San Nicolas added that GHURA had been awarded 25 Stability vouchers- 

awarded to PHA’s nationwide 
• The 25 vouchers are regular Housing Choice Vouchers and equate to $443,971 in HAP 

funds and $18,750 in special fees 
 

There was nothing further. 
                                                                                                                                      

VII.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1 .   Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, October 11, 2022 

 @ 12:00 p.m. OR Tuesday, October 18, 2022 @ 12:00 p.m. 

 

[113/22] Chairman Rivera requested that the commissioners mark their calendars for 

these dates. He stated that commissioners will be contacted at a later time regarding 

availability for the next scheduled GHURA BOC meeting.  

    

 

    VIII.   ADJOURNMENT  

 

     [114/22] Vice Chairwoman Guzman motioned to adjourn the meeting.     
    Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. There were no objections by the   
    other board members. Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 1:00pm.  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-001 

 
 
 
Moved by:  Seconded by:_           
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP APPOINTMENTS FOR THE TEMPORARY 
ACCOUNTANT II POSITIONS  
 
 
WHEREAS, under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its Board of 

Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical experts, agents 
and employees, permanent and temporary, as it may deem necessary; and 
shall determine their qualifications, duties, tenure and compensation…”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes their authority to recruit above the 

minimum step, and wishes to do so even for temporary positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, on 9/30/2022, GHURA HR completed the Accountant II recruitment (merit 

system positions) by offering the classified positions to: 
 

- Ms. Gi Young Kim Reyes 
- Mr. Bedrick B. Briones 

 
 
WHEREAS, both prospects requested to be recruited above the minimum step and will be 

pursuing that track, which can take 4-6 weeks before coming on board, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  recognizing the severe staffing shortages currently facing the FISCAL division 

during this critical period of fiscal year-end closing, annual audit, the HUD FDS 
reporting to name a few, HR has recommended this temporary track as a way 
to bring the two accountant II individuals on board as soon as possible; and  

 
WHEREAS, given the recruitment difficulty for the Accountant II positions, the prospects 

have requested an above step recruitment of $55,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, HR can support an above-step recruitment for the temporary Accountant II 

positions at MG4-7(D), $55,025 per annum; or $26.45 per hour; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners acknowledges the recruitment difficulty with the 

Accounting positions and the critical need to fill them immediately by offering 
the above-step appointment to the temporary Accountant II positions, while HR 
proceeds with their above-step recruitment track for the classified positions; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the recruitment difficulty for Accountant II’s, the Board of 

Commissioners wishes to compensate Ms. Reyes and Mr. Briones at above the 
minimum step for the temporary position of Accountant II at Pay Grade “MG4,” 
Step 7(D), which is $55,025.00 per annum, or $26.45 per hour; and 

 
 

 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 1 of 55



 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, funding for the above-step recruitment is available under COCC funds; and 

now, therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners, grants the above-step recruitment to both 

Ms. Reyes and Mr. Briones, respectively, to the temporary positions of 
Accountant II at Pay Grade “MG4,” Step 7 (D), $55,025.00 per annum or 
$26.45 per hour. 

 
 
 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, HAGATNA, GUAM --   OCTOBER 11, 2022 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:    
NAYS: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  
 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban 
Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners 
on October 11, 2022. 
 

( S E A L )                                                                    ______________________________ 
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                                                                     Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 2 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 3 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 4 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 5 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 6 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 7 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 8 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 9 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 10 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 11 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 12 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 13 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 14 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 15 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 16 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 17 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 18 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 19 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 20 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 21 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 22 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 23 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 24 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 25 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 26 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 27 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 28 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 29 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 30 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 31 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 32 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 33 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 34 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 35 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 36 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 37 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 38 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 39 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 40 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 41 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 42 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 43 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 44 of 55



October 3, 2022 

To: Sonny Perez  
       Architect / Engineering Manager 
       Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority                   
                                                                                                                                                                
Dear Sonny, 
 
The Construction of a Community Basketball Court in Inarajan necessitates the vision and 
direction by a Project Manager.  Further, the hiring of a Safety Officer to manage the safety, 
health and hazardous risk in the project site to adhere to safety standards. 
 
The cost component of both the Project Manager and Safety Officer are being reflected in the 
General Requirements under 'Project Management' line item. 
 
During the Bid Timeframe (Nov 2019), the estimated professional fee for the Project Manager 
was at $3,500 per month, while the Safety Office was at $2,200 per month.  
 
The COVID pandemic was catastrophic event beyond our control, the labor market for a highly 
specialized skillset of a Project Manager and Safety Officer was up for grabs to the highest 
bidder due to the scarcity. This scarcity brought the market value for both Project Manager and 
Safety Officer to high levels. 
 
As such, JJ Global has already spent more than the pre-bid estimated cost at this point in time. 
At the early stage of the construction, our reaction to this inflationary effect of the pandemic 
was to plead to the Authority for a reconsideration of the budget. 
 
Whilst, this has driven the Project Management component to $90,000 equitable to the current 
fair market value for both Project Manager and Safety Officer. 
 
I look forward to the approval of the “Project Management” line item in our "Request for 
Change Order".  
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Luis E. Bustamante 
President / CEO 
JJ Janitorial Services 
PO Box 217881 Barrigada GU 96921 
 

 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 45 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 46 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 47 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 48 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 49 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 50 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 51 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 52 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 53 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 54 of 55



 
Board Meeting of October 11, 2022 

 
PAGE 55 of 55




